ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE TRANSPCORTATI ON STANDI NG COW TTEE
March 24, 2016
1: 08 p. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Represent ati ve Shel |l ey Hughes, Co-Chair
Representative Loui se Stutes
Representative Matt C aman
Representative Dan Otiz

MEMBERS ABSENT

Representati ve Neal Foster, Co-Chair
Representative Charisse Ml lett
Represent ati ve Benj am n Nageak

COWM TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 186

"An Act relating to vehicle registration; relating to off-road
system restricted noncommercial drivers' |licenses; relating to
off-road system eligible areas; and relating to notor vehicle
l[iability insurance."

- HEARD & HELD

HOUSE BI LL NO. 230
"An Act designating Pipeline Road 34-ALP-3 as Arctic Man Way."

- MOVED HB 230 OQUT OF COW TTEE
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 186

SHORT TI TLE: RESTRI CTED OFF HWY DRI VER S LI CENSE
SPONSOR(s) : REPRESENTATI VE(s) KREI SS- TOWKI NS

04/ 10/ 15 (H) READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
04/ 10/ 15 (H) TRA, STA
03/ 24/ 16 (H) TRA AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 17

BILL: HB 230
SHORT TI TLE: NAM NG ARCTI C MAN WAY
SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) COLVER

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -1- March 24, 2016



01/ 19/ 16 (H) PREFI LE RELEASED 1/ 8/ 16

01/ 19/ 16 (H) READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 19/ 16 (H) TRA, FIN

03/ 22/ 16 (H) TRA AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 17

03/ 22/ 16 (H) Heard & Hel d

03/ 22/ 16 (H) M NUTE( TRA)

03/ 24/ 16 (H) TRA AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 17

W TNESS REG STER

REPRESENTATI VE JONATHAN KREI SS- TOWKI NS

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented HB 186, as prime sponsor.

BARRET W LBUR, Staff

Represent ati ve Johnat han Krei ss-Tonki ns

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Provided information and responded
guestions during the hearing on HB 186, on behal f
Representati ve Kreiss-Tonkins, prime sponsor.

MANNY BUDKE
Hoonah, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 186.

AMY ERI CKSON, Director

Di vi sion of Mtor Vehicles (DW)

Department of Adm nistration (DOA)

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the hearing on HB 186.

AUDREY O BRI EN, Manager

Juneau Driver Services

Di vision of Mdtor Vehicles (DW)

Depart ment of Adm nistration (DOA)

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the hearing on HB 186.

REPRESENTATI VE JI M COLVER

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented HB 230, as prinme sponsor.
ACTI ON NARRATI VE

1: 08: 33 PM

to

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 2- March 24, 2016



CO- CHAI R SHELLEY HUGHES cal |l ed the House Transportation Standing
Committee neeting to order at 1:08 p.m Representatives Hughes,
Claman, Otiz, and Stutes were present at the call to order.

HB 186- RESTRI CTED OFF HWY DRI VER' S LI CENSE

1: 09: 33 PM

CO CHAI R HUGHES announced that the first order of business would
be HOUSE BILL NO 186, "An Act relating to vehicle registration

relating to off-road system restricted noncommercial drivers

licenses; relating to off-road system eligible areas; and
relating to notor vehicle liability insurance."

1: 09: 44 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JONATHAN KREI SS- TOWKI NS, Al aska State Legislature
explained that off-highway driver's licenses are sonething he
had no previous famliarity with; however, over 1,000 exist in
rural Al aska's off-highway designated conmmunities. He stated
that there is a certain category of comunity where the
residents are considered ineligible, and that HB 186 is a neans
to rectify the situation. Two problematic criteria are:
comunities connected to the ferry system are categorized as on-
hi ghway comunities for the purposes of off-highway driver's
license eligibility; and the Departnent of Mtor Vehicles (DW)
uses a traffic count of over 499 to deternine off-highway
ineligibility. He pointed out that DW has conducted few
traffic counts in rural Al aska, and the |ocales where counts
have been taken are primarily communities connected to the ferry
system He stated that with passage of HB 186 there would be
f our coonmunities made eligible for of f-highway driver's
licenses. He explained that the proposed |egislation would al so
remove the potential for communities, such as Hooper Bay, to be
made ineligible if a traffic count were ever conducted there.

1:14: 13 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CLAMAN cl arified that Hoonah, Kake, Seldovia, and
Angoon are the four comunities that would becone eligible for
of f-highway driver's licenses. He asked whether HB 186 would
change the driver's license application process.

REPRESENTATI VE KREI SS- TOWKINS answered that the bill doesn't
alter the application process, it only clarifies which

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 3- March 24, 2016



communities are eligible. Also, if a person lives in a
community that is presently ineligible, he/she would not be
all owed to get an off-highway |icense.

REPRESENTATI VE CLAMAN clarified: "If | were in Angoon, even
though it's a small comunity, | couldn't apply for an off-
hi ghway |icense, where as if | was in Sand Point, | could.”

REPRESENTATI VE KREI SS- TOWI NS answered that he was correct, and
noted, currently, there are comunities wth ferry system
connections that are eligible for off-highway designation.

1:16: 34 PM

COCHAIR HUGHES offered her assunption that the discrepancy
m ght be froman infrequency of ferry service.

REPRESENTATI VE CLAMAN of fered his understanding that both Angoon
and Sand Poi nt have ferry service.

REPRESENTATI VE KREI SS- TOWKI NS answer ed correct.

1:17:15 PM

CO CHAIR HUGHES noted that Sand Point has |less frequent ferry
service than Angoon. She inquired about the nunber of DW
offices located in Southeast Alaska, and expressed surprise
that, if the bill 1is adopted, there would not be nore

comunities beconing eligible.
1:18: 13 PM

BARRET WLBUR, Staff, Representative Johnathan Kreiss-Tonkins,
Al aska State Legislature, explained that many of the |arger
communities have DW offices, including: Sitka, Petersburg,
Ket chi kan, Wangell, and Prince of Wales (POW. She said that
many Sout heast communities have driving access to a DW office

She noted that Hoonah, Angoon, Seldovia, and Kake are four
communities that would be allowed off-highway designation if HB
186 were to pass. She offered to provide further information
regardi ng which communities would be included with the passage
of HB 186.

1: 18: 59 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KREI SS-TOWKINS added that a nunber of snal
Sout heast comunities, including Port Al exander, Tenakee

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -4- March 24, 2016



Springs, and Pelican, would not becone eligible due to the |ack
of roads in those |ocales.

COCHAIR HUGHES noted that CGustavus and Sand Point are
communities with limted ferry service in Southeast Al aska, and
she asked whether there are any other non-boardwal k conmunities
that mght becone eligible, and directed attention to the
commttee packet, and the alphabetical I|ist titled, "Current
Communi ties Exenpt from Registration and Insurance, Eligible for
O f-H ghway Restricted Driver's Licenses," 2.2.2016 She noted
that Gustavus is on the list even though it has ferry service,
and noted that part of the criteria is whether or not a
community has access to a DW office.

REPRESENTATI VE KREI SS- TOWKI NS expl ained that Gustavus is on the
list because for many years it did not have ferry service.

1:21: 26 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ORTI Z asked whether or not there would be any
added significant financial responsibilities placed on the
Departnent of Transportation & Public Facilities (DOTPF), if the
| egi sl ature were to pass HB 186.

REPRESENTATI VE KREI SS- TOWKI NS r esponded no.
1:22: 05 PM

CO CHAIR HUGHES asked for further information on the specific
communities, including the nunber of paved road mles and posted
speed limts. She stated concern for public safety, and
specul at ed about young driver activity. She said when a newy
licensed 16 year old gets on the road it is not too bad if they
are just going short distances on unpaved roads. She expl ai ned
her concern is for a comunity with enough road surface for
teenagers to attain dangerous speeds.

1:22: 52 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KREI SS- TOWKINS reported having visited the four
named communities, and said all are coastal comunities, and all
have |ogging road connections. He offered his know edge that
Sel dovia has a few mles of road, Kake and Hoonah have nore than
a few mles, and Angoon is restricted because of its proximty
to the national nonunent. He offered his assunption that there
were presently off-highway eligible communities that had

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 5- March 24, 2016



significant amounts of road mles, such as the Yukon conmunity
of Ruby, but said he did not know the exact m | eage.

CO CHAIR HUGHES opined that HB 186 would not result in the
addition of comunities which have a great nunber of mles, thus
mnimzing public safety risks. Further, the comunities that
woul d becone eligible are conparable to those already on the
list and coul d show safe operations under established standards.

REPRESENTATI VE KREI SS- TOWKI NS expl ained that Angoon, Kake, and
Hoonah were at one point off-highway eligible, but then
regul ati ons changed and they becane ineligible. He said because
of the change a lot of people had off highway I|icenses in
communities that were no |longer eligible. Three conmunities
with which he is nost famliar hold universal support for this
change, he reported, and said he suspects there these |ocales
have sonme unlicensed drivers due to inaccessibility to a DW
of fice.

1: 26: 14 PM

M5. WLBUR infornmed the conmttee that the departnent conducts a
study sem -annually and assigns different designations to every
community in the state. The four named conmunities all have the
same functional classifications as conmmunities already on the
of f-highway eligibility list.

COCHAIR HUGHES inquired as to why the regulation was changed
and when it was effected; suggesting that perhaps it was handl ed
via departnental regul ation.

M5. W LBUR responded that the policy has been in place since at
|east the early 1980's; however, DW did not provide the
sponsor's office with the start date.

CO CHAI R HUGHES muai ntai ned her interest in knowing the year the
communities were renmoved from the list and what the reason was
for the renoval. She offered her assunption that the change was
made through regulation, not by statute, and asked why statute
i s being considered now.

1: 29: 53 PM
M5. WLBUR stated that the DW does not keep records of
communities that are renoved. Renoval can result for reasons

such as establishnent of a local DW office, or a traffic count
resulting in a nunber over the 499 limt. She expl ai ned that

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 6- March 24, 2016



the 499 traffic count requirenent is in statute and governs
insurance and registration exenptions, thus, the sponsor's
pursuit to affect change through | egislation versus regul ation.

1: 31: 24 PM

CO CHAIR HUGHES cl arified that Angoon may have been renoved from
t he of f-hi ghway designation |list in 2005.

M5. WLBUR stated her understanding that it has been at |east 10
years since Angoon was on the off-highway eligibility |ist.

COCHAIR HUGHES inquired as to how the change would affect
I nsurance rates.

M5. WLBUR expl ained that the 294 comunities designated as off-
hi ghway are currently exenpt from insurance, and said adding
four nmore comunities will in no way affect insurance policies
or rates.

1: 33: 04 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CLAMAN stated his belief that a Sand Point
resident who collides his truck into his neighbor's vehicle can
be renedi ed against, but not through an insurance conpany, as
Sand Point residents are not required to carry insurance.

M5 WLBUR confirmed that statute does not require off-highway
driver's license holders in off-highway communities to insure or
register their vehicles, although many residents still carry
I nsur ance.

REPRESENTATI VE CLAMAN summarized that if mninmum 1nsurance
requirenents are not net, in the mgjority of areas throughout
the state, a ticket is issued, but not in Sand Point.

CO CHAIR HUGHES asked whether tickets are being issued in the
exenpt communities citing residents for not being licensed
drivers and not having insurance.

REPRESENTATI VE KREI SS- TOWKI NS answered yes. He said that over
the course of four years, from 2012 to 2015, there have been a
total of ten charges filed, but they were inclusive to municipal
police departnents. He opined it is not wth overwhel mng
frequency that drivers are ticketed and that it is nost likely a
"| ook-away situation".

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -7- March 24, 2016



CO CHAI R HUGHES opened public testinmony on HB 186
1:37:43 PM

MANNY BUDKE stated that he has a driver's license which he
characterized as being "hard-earned." He explained that to
receive his license, he had to foot the cost to ferry his car to
Juneau and align the sailing date with a date on when DW
offered road tests, which presented a scheduling difficulty.
Additionally, he had scheduling conflicts with his parents that
created further conplications and extended the wait tine for him
to becone a licensed driver. Logistically it was very difficult
to get a driver's license living in a renote comunity, he
stressed and said that HB 186 would make it nuch easier for new
drivers to get their |icenses.

CO CHAI R HUGHES i nqui red why Sand Point and Gustavus were on the
list under the current statue and regulations, recalling that
Gustavus | acked ferry service for sone tinme and Sand Point has
limted service.

1: 40: 46 PM

AUDREY O BRI EN, WManager, Juneau Driver Services, Division of
Motor Vehicles (DwW), Department of Admi nistration (DA,
offered her understanding that Sand Point is subject to
infrequent ferry service and a traffic count has not been
conduct ed. She explained that Gustavus is on the list and the
di vision exercises caution when renobving any comunities that
have previously held off-highway designation. She added that
the traffic count for GQustavus is outdated, |ast conducted in
2012.

REPRESENTATI VE CLAVMAN opined that this was a useful and
interesting bill, wespecially for identifying how the state
determ nes and handles rural communities. He asked Ms. Erickson
for the departnment's official stance on HB 186.

1: 42: 28 PM

M5. ERICKSON replied that DW supports the bill because they
understand the <challenges many rural residents face when
obtaining driver's |licenses. She opined that nandatory
i nsurance, vehicle registration, and off-highway |icenses are
inextricably linked and a conversation about public safety in
relationship to this change, is in order.

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 8- March 24, 2016



1: 42: 53 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CLAMAN noted the previous concern for making his
a statutory versus regulatory matter. He inquired whether
pursuing this as a regulatory matter would be problematic
because of existing statute.

M5. ERICKSON responded, "Yes," and said DW regulations relate
to the off-highway restriction, but mandatory insurance and
vehicle registration reside in statute.

1:43:35 PM

CO CHAI R HUGHES announced that HB 186 would be held over and
public testinmony would remain open.

The commttee took an at-ease from1:44 p.m to 1:48 p.m

HB 230- NAM NG ARCTI C MAN WAY

1: 48: 28 PM

CO- CHAlI R HUGHES announced that the final order of business would
be HOUSE BILL NO. 230, "An Act designating Pipeline Road 34- ALP-
3 as Arctic Man Vay."

1: 49: 06 PM

REPRESENTATI VE STUTES noved to adopt the zero fiscal note dated
3/ 24/ 16 [included within the commttee packet].

CO- CHAI R HUGHES obj ected for di scussion purposes.
1:49: 22 PM

REPRESENTATI VE COLVER, Al aska State Legislature, explained that
a private organization would be funding a road sign designating
Trans- Al aska Pi peline Access Road 34-ALP-3, at mle 197.5 of the
Ri chardson Hi ghway, as Arctic Man Way in honor of the Arctic Man
race. The organization wll wrk in conjunction wth the
Departnment of Transportation & Public Facilities (DOTPF) to
conformto standards in conpleting the task.

CO CHAIR HUGHES asked if there would be any long-term cost to

the state and whether or not the road in question is a state
mai nt ai ned road.

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 9- March 24, 2016



REPRESENTATI VE COLVER answered that it is not a state naintained
road; it's an old access road to the Isabel Pass pipeline canp.
He explained that the road is mintained by the Arctic Mn
entity, which plows and opens it for event purposes. He assured
t he conmittee t hat t here are no mai nt enance rel ated
responsibilities for DOTPF.

1:50: 51 PM

CO CHAI R HUGHES renpoved her objection to the notion to adopt the
zero fiscal note. There being no objection, the zero fiscal
not e was adopt ed.

CO- CHAIR HUGHES cl osed public testinony after ascertaining no
one wished to testify on HB 230.

1:51: 31 PM

REPRESENTATI VE STUTES noved to report HB 230 out of committee
with individual recomendations and the adopted zero fiscal
note. There being no objection, HB 230 was reported out of the
House Transportation Standing Commttee.

1:52: 02 PM

ADJ OURNMENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House
Transportation Standing Comrttee neeting was adjourned at 1:52
p. m

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -10- March 24, 2016



